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UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK REMOVAL AND  
ABOVEGROUND STORAGE TANK INSTALLATION 

IFB NO. 310315-FY16-23 
Addendum #2 
May 20, 2016 

 
1. Pre-bid Meeting General Information: 

 
The pre-bid meeting started at 10:30 a.m. at the Town of Leesburg shop, located at 1393 
E Market Street in Leesburg, Virginia.  Scott Hershberger of Amec Foster Wheeler gave 
a brief overview of the project and discussed the following information: 
 
Bid Due:  Thursday, May 26, 2016 at 3:30 p.m.  They must be received by the First Floor 
Lobby Receptionist at 25 West Market Street, Leesburg, Virginia 20176 at or before 3:30 
p.m. 
 
Questions Due:  Friday, May 20, 2016 at 5:00 p.m.  Questions shall be addressed to 
CapitalBidQuestions@leesburgva.gov. 
 
Contract Time:  45 calendar days from the Notice to Proceed. 
Substantial Completion to Final Completion:  15 calendar days from the issuance of the 
punch list. 
Liquidated Damages:  $500/day  
 
Any test pits required are to be considered incidental to all other contract work and there 
is no additional payment. 
 
As-builts are required at the end of the project. 
 
Staff in attendance at the Pre-Bid meeting: 
Charlie Mumaw, Public Works Manager 
Lott Bolden, Buildings Superintendent 
Harold Young, Fleets Superintendent 
Scott Hershberger, Amec Foster Wheeler, Project Manager 
Daniel Dunlap, Amec Foster Wheeler, Geologist 
 
Attendees were shown the site and area of work to be performed under this contract and 
then the meeting was opened for Questions. 
 
The pre-bid meeting sign-in sheet is shown as ‘Attachment A’ to this Addendum. 

 
2. Questions and Answers from Pre-Bid meeting: 

 
Question 1:  Regarding the distance of the AST to be placed from the building per 

the building code and/or Fire Marshall regulations - is 5 feet really 
necessary? 

mailto:CapitalBidQuestions@leesburgva.gov
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Answer 1: Loudoun County Plan Review has confirmed that we need 5’ clearance 

from the building. 
 
 
Question 2:  Does the Town want a high level alarm on the oil/water separator 

(OWS) with an annunciator? 
 
Answer 2: The Town would prefer to have a high level alarm tied to the existing 

Veeder Root alarm system if possible. If this is not possible, a stand-alone 
alarm is acceptable. 

 
Question 3:  Where is the power source? 
 
Answer 2: The power source is located inside the building near the Shop 

Superintendent’s office.  See the attached plan showing the panel location 
(‘Attachment B’). The approximate distance is 150’. 

 
Question 4:  How will the disruption of service to the underground storage tank 

(UST) be handled?   
 
Answer 4: The Town will supply 55 gallon drums to be used during construction.  
 
Question 5:  Will a bid bond be required if the total project costs are less than 

$100,000? 
 
Answer 5: Yes. 
 
Question 6:  Will a payment bond be required if the total project costs are less than 

$100,000? 
 
Answer 6: Yes. 
 
Question 7:  Will the Town allow individual pieces of the project be bid separately? 
 
Answer 7: No. 
 
Question 8:  Will the Town select the lowest cost for each piece of the bid? 
 
Answer 8: No, the lowest total bid will be awarded as a complete project. 
 
Question 9:  Testing of the soil – Who will be responsible to tell the contractor if 

there is contaminated soil on the site? 
 
Answer 9: Per Page 24 of the bid document, bulleted item #8, “soil and groundwater 

samples will be collected for laboratory analysis per federal/state/local 
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regulations.   The samples will be collected by a third party contractor hired 
directly by the Town.  Environmental samples will be submitted to an 
approved lab for a 48 hour turnaround.”  Add – “and the Town will advise 
the contractor of remedial actions to take.” 

 
Question 10: Is a diaphragm pump required for both the oil and the antifreeze 

chambers? 
 
Answer 10: No – only for the used oil chamber. 
 
Question 11: Will a high level alarm be required for both the oil and antifreeze 

chambers? 
 
Answer 11: Yes – both with annunciators. 
 
Question 12: Will a high level alarm be required for the oil water separator? 
 
Answer 12:  Yes. 
 
Question 13: Will the contractor need to pull all permits? 
 
Answer 13: The Town will get the permits and the contractor will have the permits put 

in their name. 
 
Question 14: What is the distance required for the new aboveground storage tank to 

the existing building?   
 
Answer 14:   See response to question #1. 
 
 
Question 15: What is the timing of the new tank delivery? 

 
Answer 15:    6-8 weeks depending on manufacturer’s availability. 
  
Question 16: Do the trench drains within the maintenance bay connect to the oil 

water separator (OWS)? 
 

Answer 16:    Yes 
 
Question 17: Does the oil water separator (OWS) discharge to the sanitary sewer? 

 
Answer 17:    Yes 
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3. Questions received via email: 
 
Question 1:   I would like to submit the following information for your consideration 

as acceptable alternates to the spec’d Aboveground Storage Tank 
(AST) and Oil Water Separator (OWS). Please see the attached 
brochures as well as written description below.  

 
Our UL-142 storage tanks come in both single wall and double wall 
design.  The referenced / spec’d  Safe-T- Tank is just a single wall 
rectangular, UL-142 which we manufacture as well.  We can provide 
the exact item and even offer a double wall option. 
 
The oil water separator is a UL-2215 system, which we also fabricate 
exactly, but for the shell material.  Our oil water separator would be a 
carbon steel double wall tank, with 100 mils of Fiberglass on the 
exterior per our ACT-100 underground tank standard, and the 
interior would be coated with two coats of epoxy following the Steel 
Tank Institute Aquasweep Standard for Oil Water Separators.  See 
page 4 of our OWS brochure. 
 
(Submittals shown as ‘Attachment C’) 
 

Answer 1:   The Town will require any aboveground storage tank (AST) to meet UL-
142, double wall construction, stainless steel, vented per code, have all 
necessary ports for monitoring, filling and evacuation, and 5 gallon 
recessed spill box for manual fill with debris screen for both waste oil and 
antifreeze. And have a maximum 36” lift over height. 500 gallon used oil 
capacity, and 100 gallon used antifreeze capacity. 

 
 The Town will accept any oil water separator (OWS) that meets the 

minimum requirements of the equipment referenced in the advertisement. 
The Town will not accept any proposed OWS that requires the installation 
of anodes.  

 
END OF ADDENDUM #2 
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A) General

1. Provide ACT-100® external corrosion protected
FRP composite steel underground storage tanks.

B) Labeling

1. Tanks shall bear the Steel Tank Institute 
ACT-100® identification label.

2. Underground tanks shall bear the appropriate
Underwriters Laboratories (UL) or Underwriters
Laboratories of Canada (ULC) label.

C) Product Description

1. Tanks shall be manufactured in accordance with
Steel Tank Institute ACT-100® Specification for
External Corrosion Protection of FRP Composite
Steel Underground Storage Tanks.

2. Tanks shall be manufactured in accordance with
and listed for Underwriters Laboratories UL 58,

Steel Underground Storage Tanks for Flammable 
and Combustible Liquids, or Underwriters Labora-
tories of Canada ULC-S603, Standard for Under-
ground Storage Tanks for Flammable and Com-
bustible Liquids; and listed for UL 1746, External
Corrosion Protection Systems for Steel Under-
ground Storage Tanks, or ULC-S603.1, Standard
for Corrosion Protection for Steel Underground
Tanks for Flammable and Combustible Liquids.

3. Double-wall tanks shall provide testable 
secondary containment and access for interstitial
leak detection monitoring.

4. Tanks shall have a minimum 100 mils of an
approved FRP laminate on the tank exterior.

D) Manufacturer

1. Manufacturered by General Industries.

ACT-100® Double-Wall Underground Steel Storage Tanks

• Capacity ranges 300 to 50,000 gallons
• Steel Tank Institute ACT-100® and UL labeled
• Provides safe and effective secondary 

containment

• Utilizes strength of steel and corrosion resistance of
fiberglass

• Employs striker plate beneath fill opening to protect
tank bottom

End View

Interstice

Striker Plates

Monitoring PipeOptional Manway

Outer Tank

Inner Tank

ACT-100® Guideline Specification

All you need in tanks!

Use the STI Technology Guide online for your next ACT-100® specification!

General Industries
PO Box 1279, Goldsboro, North Carolina 27533
919-751-1791 or 888-735-2882
www.gitank.com or e-mail tanks@gitank.com
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